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Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 

Health and Social Care Committee 

Dear Dr Lyons, 

At its meeting on 8 May 2013, Members of the National Assembly for Wales’ 

Health and Social Care Committee discussed their concerns about the current 

measles outbreak. The Committee acknowledges the efforts being undertaken 

by Public Health Wales and partners in responding to this situation. The 

Committee agreed to write initially to yourselves requesting some further 

information on actions being taken, especially in the light of concerns being 

expressed around the Gwent area.  

Committee Members are aware of the correspondence between the Minister 

for Health and Social Services and the Children and Young People Committee 

on this issue (attached as an annex), and would welcome Public Health Wales’ 

view on the following: 

1. Is there any understanding of when the current outbreak will peak, and

what the full impact of this is likely to be?

2. What factors have led to the current measles outbreak, and to what

extent could future outbreaks be anticipated and planned for in order to

minimise their impact?

3. The current outbreak has centred around Swansea, although there have

been cases of measles throughout Wales. Uptake data shows varying

levels of MMR coverage across Wales. Are there any other areas in Wales

where there are particular concerns, and if so, how is this being

addressed?

4. In his letter to the Children and Young People Committee, the Minister

stated that all GP practices in the Swansea area have received lists of

unvaccinated and partially vaccinated children from the Child Health

Office, and that GPs have sent personalised letters to parents of those
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children. In what ways are unvaccinated and under-vaccinated children 

throughout Wales being targeted?  

 

5. The Minister’s letter also described arrangements that GP practices in 

the Swansea area have in place to provide catch-up doses of the MMR 

vaccine. What arrangements are there across Wales to ensure immediate 

access to the MMR vaccine for those who are under-vaccinated? Have 

there been any resource issues in relation to this, in terms of staff, 

facilities, supply of vaccine for example?  

 

6. Public Health Wales has identified the worst affected age group in the 

current outbreak as those between 10 and 18 years old. What action has 

been taken and how would you assess the effectiveness of this action to 

raise public awareness of the importance of vaccination to protect 

people from measles, particularly for the 10 – 18 age group, and to 

reassure the public about the safety and efficacy of the MMR vaccine? 

 

7. The response to the outbreak has involved a number of different 

agencies, including Public Health Wales, local health boards, education 

authorities and Welsh Government. How has a co-ordinated approach to 

dealing with the outbreak been managed?  

 

8. What further action is needed/planned to increase MMR coverage in 

order to prevent future measles outbreaks?   

 

Although the Committee is interested in undertaking a short inquiry into the 

current measles outbreak, we would not wish to commence an inquiry whilst 

the outbreak is still at - or near - its peak and public health professionals have 

more important matters to focus their attention upon.  

 

Members understand, however, that the Welsh Government does not intend to 

conduct a public inquiry into this matter. As such, it is likely that the 

Committee will look to consider the current outbreak, its causes, the response 

and any continuing risk factors that could lead to a similar occurrence outside 

the Swansea area when it is appropriate to do so. I will write in due course to 

inform you of any progress. 

 

In order to inform the Committee’s work, it would be helpful to receive a 

response to this letter by Wednesday 29 May 2013 at the latest.  

 

Yours sincerely, 

 
Vaughan Gething AC AM 

Cadeirydd – Chair 

 

cc. Minister for Health and Social Services, Mark Drakeford AM 

     Ann Jones, Chair, Children and Young People Committee 



Annex












